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Arbitrage Rebate Services RFP, Addendum #1: Question & Answers 

January 12, 2023 

RFP-related inquiries that were received on or before January 11, 2023, are listed below along with the 

Authority’s response. 

1. The IRS arbitrage rebate rules allow for calculations to be made every fifth year from the date of 

issuance, does the Virginia Resource Authority (VRA) use the fifth-year calculation date or does 

the VRA require annual calculations of rebate to be completed for each bond issue requiring an 

arbitrage rebate calculation? 

a. Calculations are typically completed annually. 

 

2. Is there a schedule existing, or that could be provided, that would show each VRA bond issue 

subject to rebate, the date of the last arbitrage rebate calculation and the amount of arbitrage 

rebate, positive or negative, as of the last calculation date? 

a. See exhibit A of the RFP for a detailed listing of all VRA bonds as of June 30, 2022. 

Approximately 20 of the issues have had rebate calculations done since July 2022; the 

others were last performed during fiscal year 2022. There was no issue showing positive 

rebate as of the last calculation date.  

 

3. Are the various VRA bond funds held and administered by a Trustee separate from the VRA or 

does the VRA maintain the accounting and invest the various bond funds? 

a. Bond funds are held and administered by a Trustee. 

 

4. Are any of the funds created via the VRA bonds comingled for accounting and/or investment 

purposes? 

a. There are senior and subordinate debt service funds for each VPFP issuance.  There is 

also a revenue fund for each series where the local payments are deposited until the 

payment date of the VRA bonds—on the VRA payment dates, funds move from the 

revenue fund to the respective senior / subordinate debt service fund and then 

payments are sent to DTC for the benefit of bondholders.  The debt service funds are 

bona fide debt service funds in that they only hold funds for a short period of time until 

the VRA level debt service payments are made and are cleaned out every year.   

 

There are capital reserve fund accounts associated with every subordinate VPFP issue.  

The operating reserve fund secures only the senior bonds and is allocable across all of 

the outstanding senior issues.  There are approximately 50 reserve funds between the 

capital reserve funds outstanding and the operating reserve fund. 

 

Note that there are separate accounts with the trustee for all of the various funds under 

the indenture. 
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5. Does the VRA have procedures established to confirm the use of loaned VRA bond funds, which 

would include any arbitrage rebate calculations requirements and payments for local 

government organizations receiving VRA funds created by the issuance of VRA bonds? 

a. Yes. 

 

6. Who is the VRA’s current arbitrage rebate calculation service provider? 

a. VRA has two providers under contract: Bingham Arbitrage Rebate Services, Inc. and 

Hawkins Delafield & Wood, LLP. 

 

7. What are the current consultant’s fees for a calculation? 

a. Fees vary but on average, VRA pays about $1,500 per calculation. 

 

8. Who is the current rebate provider other than the Clean Water program bonds?  

a. Bingham Arbitrage Rebate Services, Inc. 

 

9.  How many arbitrage reports were performed last year for bond issues other than the Clean 

Water program bonds? 

a. About 41 reports. 

The deadline for questions has now passed.  Proposals are due on January 18, 2023, as detailed in 

the RFP. 

 


